

RESOLUTION 04-01-2019

DIGEST

Statute of Limitations: Issuance of Summons

Amends Penal Code section 804 to include the issuance of a summons as an action that commences prosecution.

RESOLUTIONS COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

APPROVE IN PRINCIPLE

History:

No similar resolutions found.

Reasons:

This resolution amends Penal Code section 804 to include the issuance of a summons as an action that commences prosecution. This resolution should be approved in principle because it would allow individuals charged with felonies the opportunity to bring themselves to court rather than paying a bond or being arrested upon issuance of a warrant.

Currently, to stop the statute of limitations on a felony, a district attorney must have a warrant issued for a defendant. This invasive approach is intimidating and could impact an individual literally wherever they are in the country. For example, if an individual with a California warrant for arrest is stopped for speeding in New Jersey, when the New Jersey law enforcement officer runs the individual's driver's license looking for criminal background information, the warrant may show up on the search, and the individual may be taken into custody 3,000 miles from home. Businesses that offer bail bonds benefit significantly in this paradigm, because often bail is set on the warrants. This resolution would allow a district attorney to issue a summons instead of a warrant to stop the statute of limitations, providing an individual charged with a felony the opportunity to bring himself to court instead of being arrested and brought to court or paying an exorbitant bond and coming to court.

This resolution would treat the issuance of a summons as an act that commences prosecution, which is currently how warrants are treated. Public defenders and prosecutors agree that (a) if the proposal becomes law, district attorneys would more likely seek a summons in appropriate cases, such as when there is an agreement to allow the self-surrender of a defendant who does not pose a danger to public safety or a flight risk, and (b) defendants who are permitted to 'walk in' are not at risk of arrest due to an outstanding warrant, which is a good thing and engenders greater confidence in and compliance with the criminal justice system. For these reasons, this resolution should be approved in principle.

TEXT OF RESOLUTION

RESOLVED that the Conference of California Bar Associations recommends that legislation be sponsored to amend Penal Code section 804, to read as follows:

- 1 §804
2 Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, for the purpose of this chapter, prosecution for an
3 offense is commenced when any of the following occurs:
4 (a) An indictment or information is filed.
5 (b) A complaint is filed charging a misdemeanor or infraction.
6 (c) The defendant is arraigned on a complaint that charges the defendant with a felony.
7 (d) An arrest warrant or bench warrant is issued, provided the warrant names or describes
8 the defendant with the same degree of particularity required for an indictment, information, or
9 complaint.
10 (e) A summons is issued pursuant to Section 813.

(Proposed new language underlined; language to be deleted stricken)

PROPONENT: Los Angeles County Bar Association

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The Problem: Penal Code section 804 defines when the prosecution of an offense “commences,” which stops the running of the statute of limitations. For a felony offense, prosecution commences upon the filing of an indictment or information, the defendant’s arraignment on a complaint, or the issuance of an arrest warrant or bench warrant. (*See* Pen. Code, § 804.) However, this does not include the issuance of a summons, in which a defendant is ordered by the court to appear on a particular date. (*See* Pen. Code, § 813.) This discrepancy results in cases being filed for an arrest warrant just to stop the clock, even when the prosecution does not oppose allowing a defendant to ‘walk in’ on the warrant. With an outstanding warrant, a defendant who is allowed to surrender by the prosecuting agency remains at risk of arrest on a traffic stop or if targeted by a local fugitive apprehension team.

The Solution: This resolution would treat the issuance of a summons to secure the defendant’s appearance on a filed case as an act that commences prosecution, same as an arrest warrant. This will increase the likelihood that the prosecution would seek a summons in appropriate cases, such as when there is an agreement to allow the self-surrender of a defendant who does not pose a danger to public safety or a flight risk. It also ensures that defendants who are permitted to ‘walk in’ are not at risk of arrest due to an outstanding warrant.

IMPACT STATEMENT

This resolution does not affect any other law, statute, or rule.

CURRENT OR PRIOR RELATED LEGISLATION

None known

AUTHOR AND/OR PERMANENT CONTACT: Michael Fern, Los Angeles County District Attorney’s Office, 211 W. Temple St., Ste. 1000, Los Angeles, CA 90012, (213) 257-2438, sclawyer@gmail.com

RESPONSIBLE FLOOR DELEGATE: Michael Fern

RESOLUTION 04-02-2019

DIGEST

Pretrial Assessment Services: San Francisco Rule

Amends Penal Code section 1320.10 to permit San Francisco to provide pretrial assessment services through the office of San Francisco Pretrial Diversion Project, Inc.

RESOLUTIONS COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

DISAPPROVE

History:

No similar resolutions found.

Reasons:

This resolution amends Penal Code section 1320.10 to allow San Francisco to provide pretrial assessment services through the office of San Francisco Pretrial Diversion Project, Inc. This resolution should be disapproved because it amends the wrong code section, refers to the wrong entity, and conflicts with subdivision (e) of Penal Code section 1320.26.

In 2018, California enacted Senate Bill No. 10 to eliminate the criminal justice system's use of money bail to secure a criminal defendant's appearance. (See Pen. Code, §§ 1320.6-1320.34.) Instead of money bail, a defendant would be released or detained based on the arrest offense and any risk assessments performed by pretrial assessment services. (*Id.*) A ballot measure seeks to undo this reform, delaying implementation until the vote on that ballot measure. (See Egelko, *California Law Abolishing Bail is Put on Hold Until at Least November 2020*, San Francisco Chronicle (Jan. 16, 2019) at <https://www.sfchronicle.com/bayarea/article/California-law-abolishing-bail-is-put-on-hold-13539946.php>.)

Assuming the ballot measure fails, this resolution would allow San Francisco to continue using "the office of San Francisco Pretrial Diversion" for pretrial assessment services. Presumably, the resolution is referring to the San Francisco Pretrial Diversion Project, Inc., to whom San Francisco has subcontracted its pretrial assessment services. Further, the resolution incorrectly identifies the amended statute as section 1320.10; however, the statutory language it seeks to change is actually from section 1320.26.

Drafting errors aside, the resolution would contravene a requirement that courts establish their own pretrial assessment service or contract with a local public agency to do so. (See Pen. Code, § 1320.26, subd. (a).) "Pretrial assessment services shall be performed by public employees." (Pen. Code, § 1320.26, subd. (e).) As a private corporation, the San Francisco Pretrial Diversion Project, Inc. is ineligible.

TEXT OF RESOLUTION

RESOLVED that the Conference of California Bar Associations recommends that legislation be sponsored to amend Penal Code section 1320.10 to read as follows:

1 §1320.10

2 (a) The courts shall establish pretrial assessment services. The services may be performed
3 by court employees or the court may contract for those services with a qualified local public
4 agency with relevant experience.

5 (b) Before the court decides to not enter into a contract with a qualified local public
6 agency, the court shall find that agency will not agree to perform this function with the resources
7 available or does not have the capacity to perform the function.

8 (c) If no qualified local agency will agree to perform this pretrial assessment function for
9 a superior court, and the court elects not to perform this function, the court may contract with a
10 new local pretrial assessment services agency established to specifically perform this role.

11 (d) For the purpose of the provision of pretrial assessment services, the court may not
12 contract with a qualified local public agency that has primary responsibility for making arrests
13 and detentions within the jurisdiction.

14 (e) Pretrial assessment services shall be performed by public employees.

15 (f) Notwithstanding subdivision (i), the Superior Court of the County of Santa Clara may
16 contract with the Office of Pretrial Services of the County of Santa Clara, and the Superior Court
17 of the County of San Francisco may contract with the office of San Francisco Pretrial Diversion,
18 to provide pretrial assessment services within the Counties of Santa Clara and San Francisco
19 and those offices and that office shall be eligible for funding allocations pursuant to subdivision
20 (c) of Section 1320.27 and Section 1320.28.

21 (g) Notwithstanding subdivision (e), until January 1, 2023, a qualified local public
22 agency in the City and County of San Francisco may contract with the existing not-for-profit
23 entity that is performing pretrial services in the city and county for pretrial assessment services to
24 provide continuity and sufficient time to transition the entity's employees into public
25 employment.

26 (h) On or before February 1, 2019, the presiding judge of the superior court and the chief
27 probation officer of each county, or the director of the County of Santa Clara's Office of Pretrial
28 Services for that county, shall submit to the Judicial Council a letter confirming their intent to
29 contract for pretrial assessment services pursuant to this section.

30 (i) For the purposes of this section:

31 (1) "Pretrial Assessment Services" does not include supervision of persons released under
32 this chapter.

33 (2) A "qualified local public agency" is one with experience in all of the following:

34 (A) Relevant expertise in making risk-based determinations.

35 (B) Making recommendations to the courts pursuant to Section 1203.

36 (C) Supervising offenders in the community.

37 (D) Employing peace officers.

38
39 SEC. 1. This act shall become operative on October 1, 2019, and contingent upon Senate Bill 10
40 of the 2017–18 Regular Session becoming operative.

41
42 SEC. 2. If the Commission on State Mandates determines that this act contains costs mandated
43 by the state, reimbursement to local agencies and school districts for those costs shall be made
44 pursuant to Part 7 (commencing with Section 17500) of Division 4 of Title 2 of the Government
45 Code.

(Proposed new language underlined; language to be deleted stricken)

PROPONENT: National Lawyers Guild – San Francisco Bay Chapter

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The Problem: SB 10 creates a new statewide infrastructure to deliver pretrial services – without taking existing successful programs such as SF Pretrial into account. It seeks to dissolve San Francisco’s effective current pretrial model by reassigning responsibility for pretrial assessment and supervision to the Probation Department. San Francisco Pretrial Diversion Project (SF Pretrial) has operated as a cost effective, independent, non-profit organization that provides case management, supervision, and assessment services for justice-involved populations in San Francisco for the last 43 years. SF Pretrial is embedded in our local Court and criminal justice system and is an industry-leader in ensuring individuals charged with a crime appear for trial, achieve maximum rehabilitation, and contribute to the safety of our communities. SF Pretrial outcomes meet and exceed those of preeminent programs across the Country, including the two models commonly used as pretrial replication models in Kentucky and Washington, D.C. SB 10 will destroy this effective and successful system and replace it with a more expensive system without any proven track record that is not presently in existence. SF pretrial operates under the presumption of innocence until proven guilty, while probation departments are law enforcement agencies traditionally operating post-conviction.

The Solution: Amend Penal Code Section 1320.10 (SB 10) to include language that mirrors the exception created for Santa Clara County, preserving SF Pretrial as an independent, non-profit organization providing pretrial services in San Francisco. Penal Code §1320.10 already provides an exemption for Santa Clara County which allows them to keep their existing structure in place. All subsequent language in related budget and legislative bills should mirror this language to ensure the City & County of San Francisco is eligible for State allocated pretrial funding. Los Angeles and other counties are also exploring alternative options to the structures established under SB 10.

IMPACT STATEMENT

This resolution does not affect any other law, statute, or rule.

CURRENT OR PRIOR RELATED LEGISLATION

None known.

AUTHOR AND/OR PERMANENT CONTACT: Geri Lynn Green, 4 Embarcadero Center, suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94111 (415) 982-2600,Fax (415) 358-4562; gerilynnngreen@gmail.com.

RESPONSIBLE FLOOR DELEGATE: Richard P. Koch

RESOLUTION 04-03-2019

DIGEST

Discovery: Protecting the Personal Identifying Information of Victims and Witnesses

Amends Penal Code section 1054.2 to protect personal identifying information of victims and witnesses in criminal cases.

RESOLUTIONS COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

APPROVE IN PRINCIPLE

History:

No similar resolutions found.

Reasons:

This resolution amends Penal Code section 1054.2 to protect personal identifying information of victims and witnesses in criminal cases. This resolution should be approved in principle because protecting the personal identifying information of victims and witnesses is of critical importance in the criminal justice process.

Penal Code section 1054.2 currently prohibits the disclosure of a victim or witness's address or telephone number to a defendant, a member of the defendant's family, or anyone else unless specifically permitted by the court. The same section prohibits disclosure to staff of the defense unless it is required to prepare for the case. Finally, if a defendant is self-represented, the defendant may only contact the witness or victim through a private investigator licensed by the Department of Consumer Affairs and appointed by the court, unless good cause otherwise dictates. This protects victims and witnesses from the risk of threats or harassment by defendants. However, under current law, a victim or witness's social security number, birthdate, and place of employment, are not similarly protected; a defendant or their family could request and receive that information without a court order.

This resolution would expand the protected information to include additional personal identifying information that defendants could also use to locate victims and witnesses, or to cause further harm. The resolution would also protect the following information from disclosure, absent a court order: "any name, address, telephone number, ... state or federal driver's license, or identification number, social security number, place of employment, ... mother's maiden name, ... alien registration number, government passport number, date of birth, unique biometric data including fingerprint, facial scan identifiers, voiceprint, retina or iris image, or other unique physical representation, unique electronic data including information identification number assigned to the person, ... information contained in a birth or death certificate, or credit card number of an individual person, or an equivalent form of identification." (Pen. Code, § 530.55, subd. (b).)

This expanded list is important. The current version of the Penal Code is far too limited in what is protected by the law. Current growth and changes in information technology, information available on the internet, and the ease of finding personal information has outstripped the limited protections available under the current structure. Identities can easily be stolen with a social

security number and/or birthdate. By increasing the protections available to a witness or victim we encourage these parties to step forward and participate in the criminal justice system.

TEXT OF RESOLUTION

RESOLVED that the Conference of California Bar Associations recommends that legislation be sponsored to amend Penal Code section 1054.2 to read as follows:

1 §1054.2

2 (a) (1) Except as provided in paragraph (2), no attorney may disclose or permit to be
3 disclosed to a defendant, members of the defendant's family, or anyone else, ~~the address or~~
4 ~~telephone number~~ any personal identifying information, as defined in Section 530.55, of a victim
5 or witness whose name is disclosed to the attorney pursuant to subdivision (a) of Section
6 1054.1, other than the name of that victim or witness, unless specifically permitted to do so by
7 the court after a hearing and a showing of good cause.

8 (2) Notwithstanding paragraph (1), an attorney may disclose or permit to be disclosed
9 ~~the address or telephone number~~ personal identifying information of a victim or witness to
10 persons employed by the attorney or to persons appointed by the court to assist in the preparation
11 of a defendant's case if that disclosure is required for that preparation. Persons provided this
12 information by an attorney shall be informed by the attorney that further dissemination of the
13 information, except as provided by this section, is prohibited.

14 (3) Willful violation of this subdivision by an attorney, persons employed by the attorney,
15 or persons appointed by the court is a misdemeanor. Nothing in this section prohibits
16 prosecution under any other provision of law.

17 (b) If the defendant is acting as his or her own attorney, the court shall endeavor to
18 protect the ~~address or telephone number~~ personal identifying information of victim or witness by
19 providing for contact only through a private investigator licensed by the Department of
20 Consumer Affairs and appointed by the court or by imposing other reasonable restrictions, absent
21 a showing of good cause as determined by the court.

(Proposed new language underlined; language to be deleted stricken)

PROPONENT: Los Angeles County Bar Association

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The Problem: Existing law prohibits defense attorneys from disclosing the telephone numbers and addresses of victims and witnesses to anyone outside their firm, unless a court has found good cause to do so. This rule is designed to protect victims and witnesses from harassment and retaliation and to ensure that disclosure of their personal contact information is narrowly-tailored to a legitimate defense. However, all personal identifying information should be protected from unfettered disclosure, not just addresses or telephone numbers. This is especially true in cases involving fraud or theft, where the criminal discovery may include a treasure trove of personal identifying information, such as email accounts, dates of birth, Social Security numbers, bank records, credit cards, driver's licenses, etc.

The Solution: This resolution would expand existing protections that safeguard a victim or witness's address and telephone number to cover personally identifying information as defined in Penal Code section 530.55. As before, disclosures to third parties can still be made if a court finds good cause to do so.

IMPACT STATEMENT

This resolution does not affect any other law, statute, or rule.

CURRENT OR PRIOR RELATED LEGISLATION

None known.

AUTHOR AND/OR PERMANENT CONTACT: Michael Fern, 211 W. Temple St., Ste. 1000, Los Angeles, CA 90012, (213) 257-2438, sclawyer@gmail.com.

RESPONSIBLE FLOOR DELEGATE: Michael Fern

RESOLUTION 04-04-2019

DIGEST

Prisons: Allowing at Least One Attorney Call Per Month

Adds Penal Code section 5058.7 to require that prison inmates be given at least one confidential attorney call per month if their attorneys’ offices are more than 75 miles from the prison.

RESOLUTIONS COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

APPROVE IN PRINCIPLE

History:

No similar resolutions found.

Reasons:

This resolution adds Penal Code section 5058.7 to require that prison inmates be given at least one confidential attorney call per month if their attorneys’ offices are more than 75 miles from the prison. This resolution should be approved in principle because it would ensure that inmates can have at least minimal telephone contact with their attorneys if their attorneys do not have offices within 75 miles of the prison.

Under the current governing regulations, inmates can be denied confidential telephone calls with their attorneys if the institution head “determines that normal legal mail or attorney visits were appropriate means of communication and were not reasonably utilized by the inmate or attorney.” (15 Cal. Code Regs., § 3282, subd. (g)(6).)

Because prisons are often fairly remote from the areas in which many attorneys have their offices, attorney visits to prisons tend to be infrequent. As a result, by denying confidential calls, wardens can effectively limit such inmates to communicating with their attorneys by mail. This resolution addresses that problem by mandating the availability of confidential attorney telephone calls for inmates whose attorneys’ offices are more than 75 miles from the prison. The resolution avoids placing a significant burden on prisons by requiring only one such call per month.

TEXT OF RESOLUTION

RESOLVED that the Conference of California Bar Association recommends that legislation be sponsored to add California Penal Code section 5058.7 to read as follows:

- 1 §5058.7
- 2 A “confidential call” means a telephone call between an inmate and his/her attorney
- 3 which both parties intend to be private. If the attorney’s place of work is greater than 75 radius
- 4 miles from the institution, confidential calls must be approved for a minimum of thirty (30)
- 5 minutes once a month, unless the request is for less.

(Proposed new language underlined; language to be deleted stricken)

PROPONENT: San Diego County Bar Association

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The Problem: Unlike many other people, inmates cannot just pick up the phone, send an email, or text message to reach their attorney confidentially. Only two main options exist at every prison, and unless inmates want to waive confidentiality and privilege by calling their attorney on a recorded line, the amount to sending attorney-client communication back to before Antonio Meucci and Alexander Graham Bell created the telephone: (1) Attorney arranges a day and time to visit, which works if the attorney is within a reasonable distance, (2) attorney and client write letters, mark them legal mail, and send them off through our postal service, which works if the matters discussed are not urgent. Some prisons provide a third option, which is for the attorney to arrange a day and time with the jail to call and talk to the inmate on an unrecorded line with nobody else within earshot. That is known as a “confidential call,” and it works when the matter is urgent, and the attorney is outside of driving distance.

The problem is many prisons routinely deny confidential calls, refusing to factor in that the attorney is far away, that the matter is urgent, or anything else. That takes away the ability of inmate clients and their attorney to exercise their right and need to confidentially communicate in a way that can be done quickly and without huge time and travel expenses. Not only does this make representation by an attorney from a distance much harder, but the added cost makes finding representation even harder; they already have trouble finding representation from anyone who lives or works near them, let alone from someone further away, and this adds to that problem.

The Solution: This resolution requires prisons to allow for confidential calls between attorneys and inmates when the attorney works greater than 75 radius miles from the prison, for at least 30 minutes once a month, unless the request is for less. This will enable inmates to exercise their rights to confidential attorney-client communications better and remove an obstacle to finding representation for inmates.

IMPACT STATEMENT

This resolution may require related amendments to the California Code of Regulations. The specific regulation is Title 15, Division 3, Chapter 1, Subchapter 4, Article 2, Section 3282 (15 CCR § 3282).

CURRENT OR PRIOR RELATED LEGISLATION

None known.

AUTHOR AND/OR PERMANENT CONTACT: Ben Rudin, 3830 Valley Centre Dr., Ste. 705 PMB 231, San Diego, CA 92130, (858) 256-4429, ben_rudin@hotmail.com.

RESPONSIBLE FLOOR DELEGATE: Ben Rudin

RESOLUTION 04-05-2019

DIGEST

Motions to Suppress: Time for Hearings on Misdemeanor Motions

Amends Penal Code section 1538.5 to require misdemeanor motions to suppress to be heard within ten days of filing, absent good cause.

RESOLUTIONS COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

DISAPPROVE

History:

Similar to Resolution 06-01-2009, which was approved in principle.

Reasons:

This resolution amends Penal Code section 1538.5 to require misdemeanor motions to suppress to be heard within ten days of filing, absent good cause. This resolution should be disapproved because this resolution does not ensure that misdemeanor defendants will receive a timely hearing on a suppression motion.

Penal Code section 1538.5 focuses on the suppression or exclusion of evidence obtained in violation of the law. The bulk of section 1538.5 relates to felony prosecutions and briefly mentions misdemeanors. Penal Code section 1538.5 subdivision (g) states “If the property or evidence relates to a misdemeanor complaint, the motion shall be made before trial and heard prior to trial at a special hearing relating to the validity of the search and seizure.”

Currently, there exists a different calendaring process for a defendant in custody on a felony complaint than for a defendant in custody on a misdemeanor. As a general practice, misdemeanor defendants are released on their own recognizance. They are held in custody if there is some other compelling reason such as a flight risk or violation of a domestic violence restraining order. (See Pen. Code, § 853.6.) Under the current scheme, a misdemeanor defendant may actually have to wait longer for a hearing than a felony defendant. This creates inconsistency between felony and misdemeanor motions to suppress.

The proposed language does not actually fix this inconsistency. As written, this provision and relief only works on behalf of the defendant if the motion is served on the prosecution in court during a hearing on the case in question. The motion cannot be served on the office itself. This may create a situation where a defendant must wait until a hearing in court before they can serve the prosecution, which may be weeks away, instead of serving on the prosecution’s office immediately. This does not harmonize the calendaring between felony and misdemeanor cases.

Further, the consequence for failing to hold the hearing within ten days of service is that the defendant (if in custody) would be released from custody, without discretion from the court, or consideration of any evidence. Such a bright-line rule could put the public at risk from violent defendants, or could release a defendant who is a flight-risk, even where a delayed hearing is not the prosecution’s fault. The defendant may not be present due to an action by the sheriff’s department or action by the court, not by the prosecution. Eliminating the court’s discretion,

without harmonizing the calendaring concerns between felony and misdemeanor cases, would not promote justice.

TEXT OF RESOLUTION

RESOLVED that the Conference of California Bar Associations recommends that legislation be sponsored to amend Penal Code section 1538.5 to read as follows:

1 § 1538.5

2 (a) (1) A defendant may move for the return of property or to suppress as evidence any
3 tangible or intangible thing obtained as a result of a search or seizure on either of the following
4 grounds:

5 (A) The search or seizure without a warrant was unreasonable.

6 (B) The search or seizure with a warrant was unreasonable because any of the following
7 apply:

8 (i) The warrant is insufficient on its face.

9 (ii) The property or evidence obtained is not that described in the warrant.

10 (iii) There was not probable cause for the issuance of the warrant.

11 (iv) The method of execution of the warrant violated federal or state constitutional
12 standards.

13 (v) There was any other violation of federal or state constitutional standards.

14 (2) A motion pursuant to paragraph (1) shall be made in writing and accompanied by a
15 memorandum of points and authorities and proof of service. The memorandum shall list the
16 specific items of property or evidence sought to be returned or suppressed and shall set forth the
17 factual basis and the legal authorities that demonstrate why the motion should be granted.

18 (b) When consistent with the procedures set forth in this section and subject to the
19 provisions of Sections 170 to 170.6, inclusive, of the Code of Civil Procedure, the motion should
20 first be heard by the magistrate who issued the search warrant if there is a warrant.

21 (c) (1) Whenever a search or seizure motion is made in the superior court as provided in
22 this section, the judge or magistrate shall receive evidence on any issue of fact necessary to
23 determine the motion.

24 (2) While a witness is under examination during a hearing pursuant to a search or seizure
25 motion, the judge or magistrate shall, upon motion of either party, do any of the following:

26 (A) Exclude all potential and actual witnesses who have not been examined.

27 (B) Order the witnesses not to converse with each other until they are all examined.

28 (C) Order, where feasible, that the witnesses be kept separated from each other until they
29 are all examined.

30 (D) Hold a hearing, on the record, to determine if the person sought to be excluded is, in
31 fact, a person excludable under this section.

32 (3) Either party may challenge the exclusion of any person under paragraph (2).

33 (4) Paragraph (2) does not apply to the investigating officer or the investigator for the
34 defendant, nor does it apply to officers having custody of persons brought before the court.

35 (d) If a search or seizure motion is granted pursuant to the proceedings authorized by this
36 section, the property or evidence shall not be admissible against the movant at any trial or other

37 hearing unless further proceedings authorized by this section, Section 871.5, 1238, or 1466 are
38 utilized by the people.

39 (e) If a search or seizure motion is granted at a trial, the property shall be returned upon
40 order of the court unless it is otherwise subject to lawful detention. If the motion is granted at a
41 special hearing, the property shall be returned upon order of the court only if, after the
42 conclusion of any further proceedings authorized by this section, Section 1238 or 1466, the
43 property is not subject to lawful detention or if the time for initiating the proceedings has
44 expired, whichever occurs last. If the motion is granted at a preliminary hearing, the property
45 shall be returned upon order of the court after 10 days unless the property is otherwise subject to
46 lawful detention or unless, within that time, further proceedings authorized by this section,
47 Section 871.5 or 1238 are utilized; if they are utilized, the property shall be returned only if, after
48 the conclusion of the proceedings, the property is no longer subject to lawful detention.

49 (f) (1) If the property or evidence relates to a felony offense initiated by a complaint, the
50 motion shall be made only upon filing of an information, except that the defendant may make the
51 motion at the preliminary hearing, but the motion shall be restricted to evidence sought to be
52 introduced by the people at the preliminary hearing.

53 (2) The motion may be made at the preliminary examination only if, at least five court
54 days before the date set for the preliminary examination, the defendant has filed and personally
55 served on the people a written motion accompanied by a memorandum of points and authorities
56 as required by paragraph (2) of subdivision (a). At the preliminary examination, the magistrate
57 may grant the defendant a continuance for the purpose of filing the motion and serving the
58 motion upon the people, at least five court days before resumption of the examination, upon a
59 showing that the defendant or his or her attorney of record was not aware of the evidence or was
60 not aware of the grounds for suppression before the preliminary examination.

61 (3) Any written response by the people to the motion described in paragraph (2) shall be
62 filed with the court and personally served on the defendant or his or her attorney of record at
63 least two court days prior to the hearing at which the motion is to be made.

64 (g) If the property or evidence relates to a misdemeanor complaint, the motion shall be
65 made before trial and heard prior to trial at a special hearing relating to the validity of the search
66 or seizure. Where the motion is filed and served on the prosecution in court during a hearing on
67 the case, the hearing on the motion shall be conducted within ten days of filing and service,
68 absent good cause or the consent of the defendant. If the hearing does not commence within ten
69 days of the filing and service without good cause or the defendant's consent, the court shall order
70 the defendant released, and the motion shall be heard before trial. If the property or evidence
71 relates to a misdemeanor filed together with a felony, the procedure provided for a felony in this
72 section and Sections 1238 and 1539 shall be applicable.

73 (h) If, prior to the trial of a felony or misdemeanor, opportunity for this motion did not
74 exist or the defendant was not aware of the grounds for the motion, the defendant shall have the
75 right to make this motion during the course of trial.

76 (i) If the property or evidence obtained relates to a felony offense initiated by complaint
77 and the defendant was held to answer at the preliminary hearing, or if the property or evidence
78 relates to a felony offense initiated by indictment, the defendant shall have the right to renew or
79 make the motion at a special hearing relating to the validity of the search or seizure which shall
80 be heard prior to trial and at least 10 court days after notice to the people, unless the people are
81 willing to waive a portion of this time. Any written response by the people to the motion shall be
82 filed with the court and personally served on the defendant or his or her attorney of record at

83 least two court days prior to the hearing, unless the defendant is willing to waive a portion of this
84 time. If the offense was initiated by indictment or if the offense was initiated by complaint and
85 no motion was made at the preliminary hearing, the defendant shall have the right to fully litigate
86 the validity of a search or seizure on the basis of the evidence presented at a special hearing. If
87 the motion was made at the preliminary hearing, unless otherwise agreed to by all parties,
88 evidence presented at the special hearing shall be limited to the transcript of the preliminary
89 hearing and to evidence that could not reasonably have been presented at the preliminary
90 hearing, except that the people may recall witnesses who testified at the preliminary hearing. If
91 the people object to the presentation of evidence at the special hearing on the grounds that the
92 evidence could reasonably have been presented at the preliminary hearing, the defendant shall be
93 entitled to an in camera hearing to determine that issue. The court shall base its ruling on all
94 evidence presented at the special hearing and on the transcript of the preliminary hearing, and the
95 findings of the magistrate shall be binding on the court as to evidence or property not affected by
96 evidence presented at the special hearing. After the special hearing is held, any review thereafter
97 desired by the defendant prior to trial shall be by means of an extraordinary writ of mandate or
98 prohibition filed within 30 days after the denial of his or her motion at the special hearing.

99 (j) If the property or evidence relates to a felony offense initiated by complaint and the
100 defendant's motion for the return of the property or suppression of the evidence at the
101 preliminary hearing is granted, and if the defendant is not held to answer at the preliminary
102 hearing, the people may file a new complaint or seek an indictment after the preliminary hearing,
103 and the ruling at the prior hearing shall not be binding in any subsequent proceeding, except as
104 limited by subdivision (p). In the alternative, the people may move to reinstate the complaint, or
105 those parts of the complaint for which the defendant was not held to answer, pursuant to Section
106 871.5. If the property or evidence relates to a felony offense initiated by complaint and the
107 defendant's motion for the return or suppression of the property or evidence at the preliminary
108 hearing is granted, and if the defendant is held to answer at the preliminary hearing, the ruling at
109 the preliminary hearing shall be binding upon the people unless, upon notice to the defendant and
110 the court in which the preliminary hearing was held and upon the filing of an information, the
111 people, within 15 days after the preliminary hearing, request a special hearing, in which case the
112 validity of the search or seizure shall be relitigated de novo on the basis of the evidence
113 presented at the special hearing, and the defendant shall be entitled, as a matter of right, to a
114 continuance of the special hearing for a period of time up to 30 days. The people may not request
115 relitigation of the motion at a special hearing if the defendant's motion has been granted twice. If
116 the defendant's motion is granted at a special hearing, the people, if they have additional
117 evidence relating to the motion and not presented at the special hearing, shall have the right to
118 show good cause at the trial why the evidence was not presented at the special hearing and why
119 the prior ruling at the special hearing should not be binding, or the people may seek appellate
120 review as provided in subdivision (o), unless the court, prior to the time the review is sought, has
121 dismissed the case pursuant to Section 1385. If the case has been dismissed pursuant to Section
122 1385, either on the court's own motion or the motion of the people after the special hearing, the
123 people may file a new complaint or seek an indictment after the special hearing, and the ruling at
124 the special hearing shall not be binding in any subsequent proceeding, except as limited by
125 subdivision (p). If the property or evidence seized relates solely to a misdemeanor complaint, and
126 the defendant made a motion for the return of property or the suppression of evidence in the
127 superior court prior to trial, both the people and defendant shall have the right to appeal any
128 decision of that court relating to that motion to the appellate division, in accordance with the

129 California Rules of Court provisions governing appeals to the appellate division in criminal
130 cases. If the people prosecute review by appeal or writ to decision, or any review thereof, in a
131 felony or misdemeanor case, it shall be binding upon them.

132 (k) If the defendant's motion to return property or suppress evidence is granted and the
133 case is dismissed pursuant to Section 1385, or the people appeal in a misdemeanor case pursuant
134 to subdivision (j), the defendant shall be released pursuant to Section 1318 if he or she is in
135 custody and not returned to custody unless the proceedings are resumed in the trial court and he
136 or she is lawfully ordered by the court to be returned to custody.

137 If the defendant's motion to return property or suppress evidence is granted and the people file a
138 petition for writ of mandate or prohibition pursuant to subdivision (o) or a notice of intention to
139 file a petition, the defendant shall be released pursuant to Section 1318, unless (1) he or she is
140 charged with a capital offense in a case where the proof is evident and the presumption great, or
141 (2) he or she is charged with a noncapital offense defined in Chapter 1 (commencing with
142 Section 187) of Title 8 of Part 1, and the court orders that the defendant be discharged from
143 actual custody upon bail.

144 (l) If the defendant's motion to return property or suppress evidence is granted, the trial
145 of a criminal case shall be stayed to a specified date pending the termination in the appellate
146 courts of this state of the proceedings provided for in this section, Section 871.5, 1238, or 1466
147 and, except upon stipulation of the parties, pending the time for the initiation of these
148 proceedings. Upon the termination of these proceedings, the defendant shall be brought to trial as
149 provided by Section 1382, and, subject to the provisions of Section 1382, whenever the people
150 have sought and been denied appellate review pursuant to subdivision (o), the defendant shall be
151 entitled to have the action dismissed if he or she is not brought to trial within 30 days of the date
152 of the order that is the last denial of the petition. Nothing contained in this subdivision shall
153 prohibit a court, at the same time as it rules upon the search and seizure motion, from dismissing
154 a case pursuant to Section 1385 when the dismissal is upon the court's own motion and is based
155 upon an order at the special hearing granting the defendant's motion to return property or
156 suppress evidence. In a misdemeanor case, the defendant shall be entitled to a continuance of up
157 to 30 days if he or she intends to file a motion to return property or suppress evidence and needs
158 this time to prepare for the special hearing on the motion. In case of an appeal by the defendant
159 in a misdemeanor case from the denial of the motion, he or she shall be entitled to bail as a
160 matter of right, and, in the discretion of the trial or appellate court, may be released on his or her
161 own recognizance pursuant to Section 1318. In the case of an appeal by the defendant in a
162 misdemeanor case from the denial of the motion, the trial court may, in its discretion, order or
163 deny a stay of further proceedings pending disposition of the appeal.

164 (m) The proceedings provided for in this section, and Sections 871.5, 995, 1238, and
165 1466 shall constitute the sole and exclusive remedies prior to conviction to test the
166 unreasonableness of a search or seizure where the person making the motion for the return of
167 property or the suppression of evidence is a defendant in a criminal case and the property or
168 thing has been offered or will be offered as evidence against him or her. A defendant may seek
169 further review of the validity of a search or seizure on appeal from a conviction in a criminal
170 case notwithstanding the fact that the judgment of conviction is predicated upon a plea of guilty.
171 Review on appeal may be obtained by the defendant provided that at some stage of the
172 proceedings prior to conviction he or she has moved for the return of property or the suppression
173 of the evidence.

174 (n) This section establishes only the procedure for suppression of evidence and return of
175 property, and does not establish or alter any substantive ground for suppression of evidence or
176 return of property. Nothing contained in this section shall prohibit a person from making a
177 motion, otherwise permitted by law, to return property, brought on the ground that the property
178 obtained is protected by the free speech and press provisions of the United States and California
179 Constitutions. Nothing in this section shall be construed as altering (1) the law of standing to
180 raise the issue of an unreasonable search or seizure; (2) the law relating to the status of the
181 person conducting the search or seizure; (3) the law relating to the burden of proof regarding the
182 search or seizure; (4) the law relating to the reasonableness of a search or seizure regardless of
183 any warrant that may have been utilized; or (5) the procedure and law relating to a motion made
184 pursuant to Section 871.5 or 995, or the procedures that may be initiated after the granting or
185 denial of a motion.

186 (o) Within 30 days after a defendant's motion is granted at a special hearing in a felony
187 case, the people may file a petition for writ of mandate or prohibition in the court of appeal,
188 seeking appellate review of the ruling regarding the search or seizure motion. If the trial of a
189 criminal case is set for a date that is less than 30 days from the granting of a defendant's motion
190 at a special hearing in a felony case, the people, if they have not filed a petition and wish to
191 preserve their right to file a petition, shall file in the superior court on or before the trial date or
192 within 10 days after the special hearing, whichever occurs last, a notice of intention to file a
193 petition and shall serve a copy of the notice upon the defendant.

194 (p) If a defendant's motion to return property or suppress evidence in a felony matter has
195 been granted twice, the people may not file a new complaint or seek an indictment in order to
196 relitigate the motion or relitigate the matter de novo at a special hearing as otherwise provided by
197 subdivision (j), unless the people discover additional evidence relating to the motion that was not
198 reasonably discoverable at the time of the second suppression hearing. Relitigation of the motion
199 shall be heard by the same judge who granted the motion at the first hearing if the judge is
200 available.

201 (q) The amendments to this section enacted in the 1997 portion of the 1997-98 Regular
202 Session of the Legislature shall apply to all criminal proceedings conducted on or after January
203 1, 1998.

(Proposed new language underlined; language to be deleted stricken)

PROPONENT: Los Angeles County Bar Association

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The Problem: A defendant has a constitutional right to challenge the admissibility of evidence obtained in violation of the Fourth Amendment. Section 1538.5 lays out the procedure for such hearings, and the filing requirements. The problem is that while section 1538.5 requires a court to conduct a suppression hearing within ten days of filing on a *felony*, it sets no limits on the timing of such a hearing for misdemeanors. In practical terms, this means that misdemeanor defendants detained solely on the basis of illegally obtained evidence must remain in jail for at least 30 actual days before they can exercise their Fourth Amendment rights – a term of imprisonment far longer than most misdemeanor defendants face if they simply pled to the charge.

The Solution: This resolution would clarify that courts cannot simply refuse to consider the constitutionality of a misdemeanor defendant's detention until the defendant has spent a month or more in jail. Instead, absent a showing of good cause or the defendant's consent, a Fourth Amendment challenge must be heard within 10 days of filing assuming the prosecutor is properly notified. Where a hearing is continued past the ten day period without good cause, the court must release a detained misdemeanor defendant, and then hold the hearing before commencing trial.

IMPACT STATEMENT

This resolution does not affect any other law, statute, or rule.

CURRENT OR PRIOR RELATED LEGISLATION

None known.

AUTHOR AND/OR PERMANENT CONTACT: Nick Stewart-Oaten, P: 213-974-3000, 320 W. Temple Street, 5th Floor, Los Angeles, CA 90012

RESPONSIBLE FLOOR DELEGATE: Nick Stewart-Oaten

RESOLUTION 04-06-2019

DIGEST

Insanity Pleas: Adopt Model Penal Code Standard for Insanity Defense

Amends Penal Code section 25 to replace the M’Naghten rule for insanity pleas with the Model Penal Code standard.

RESOLUTIONS COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

APPROVE IN PRINCIPLE

History:

No similar resolutions found.

Reasons:

This resolution amends Penal Code section 25 to replace the M’Naghten rule for insanity pleas with the Model Penal Code standard. This resolution should be approved in principle because the Model Penal Code standard provides a much more up-to-date and accurate understanding of psychology and mental health than the outdated M’Naghten rule.

In the absence of a legislative definition of insanity, California courts originally applied the 1843 M’Naghten test, which allows a verdict of not guilty by reason of insanity only if, “at the time of the committing the act [sic], the party accused was labouring under such a defect of reason, from disease of the mind, as not to know the nature and quality of the act he was doing; or, if he did know it, that he did not know he was doing what was wrong.” (*M’Naghten’s Case* (1843) 10 Clark & Fin. 200, 210 [8 Eng. Rep. 718, 722].) Starting in the 1950s, however, the Supreme Court repeatedly acknowledged that the rule was outdated, and based on inaccurate concepts of psychology and mental health. In 1978, the Supreme Court finally replaced the M’Naghten rule with the standard set forth in section 4.1 of the American Law Institute’s Model Penal Code (“MPC”). (See *People v. Drew* (1978) 22 Cal.3d 333.) The MPC standard modified the M’Naghten rule by changing “was incapable” to “lacked substantial capacity,” and by adding as a defense the defendant’s lack of capacity to conform conduct to the requirements of the law.

But then in June 1982, John Hinckley was acquitted of the attempted murder of Ronald Reagan based on the MPC insanity standard. Five months later, California voters approved Proposition 8, which (among other things) changed California’s insanity defense from the MPC standard back to the outdated M’Naghten rule. (Prop. 8, as approved by voters, Gen. Elec. (Nov. 2, 1982).) Surveys at the time showed that people believed the insanity defense needed to be restricted based on unsupported views that the defense was frequently used and frequently successful. (See, e.g., Hans, *An Analysis of Public Attitudes Toward the Insanity Defense* (1986) 24 Criminology 393, 406 [most common survey responses were that the insanity defense was used in 50% of criminal cases, and that it had a 50% success rate when used; actual rate of successful use was 1% of all criminal cases].) News reports at the time also touted Hinckley’s purported eligibility for prompt release from an institution. (See, e.g., Stuart Taylor, *Hinckley Hails “Historical” Shooting to Win Love* (Jul. 9, 1982) N.Y. Times at A10 [discussing need for Hinckley to appear sane if he wanted to be “released” after his initial mental health interview].) In fact, Hinckley remained institutionalized until 2016.

The factors that led to the re-adoption of the M’Naghten rule were unjustified at the time and the rule is in need of reform. Sixteen other states and the District of Columbia have adopted the more accurate MPC standard for the insanity defense. This resolution would restore the MPC standard, and eliminate the outdated M’Naghten rule.

RESOLVED, that the Conference of California Bar Associations recommends that legislation be sponsored to amend Penal Code section 25 to read as follows:

1 §25

2 (a) The defense of diminished capacity is hereby abolished. In a criminal action, as well
3 as any juvenile court proceeding, evidence concerning an accused person’s intoxication, trauma,
4 mental illness, disease, or defect shall not be admissible to show or negate capacity to form the
5 particular purpose, intent, motive, malice aforethought, knowledge, or other mental state required
6 for the commission of the crime charged.

7 (b) In any criminal proceeding, including any juvenile court proceeding, in which a plea
8 of not guilty by reason of insanity is entered, this defense shall be found by the trier of fact only
9 when the accused person proves by a preponderance of the evidence that ~~he or she~~ at the time of
10 the charged offense, as a result of mental disease or defect, he or she lacked substantial capacity
11 either to appreciate the criminality of his or her conduct or to conform his or her conduct to the
12 requirements of the law. ~~was incapable of knowing or understanding the nature and quality of his~~
13 ~~or her act and of distinguishing right from wrong at the time of the commission of the offense.~~

14 (c) Notwithstanding the foregoing, evidence of diminished capacity or of a mental
15 disorder may be considered by the court only at the time of sentencing or other disposition or
16 commitment.

17 (d) The provisions of this section shall not be amended by the Legislature except by
18 statute passed in each house by rollcall vote entered in the journal, two-thirds of the membership
19 concurring, or by a statute that becomes effective only when approved by the electors.

(Proposed new language underlined; language to be deleted stricken)

PROPONENT: Los Angeles County Bar Association

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The Problem: Roughly a quarter of Californians serving sentences in state prison suffer from a serious mental illness. The mass imprisonment of the mentally ill is not only cruel, it is counter-productive, as prisons are ill-equipped to handle the rehabilitative and safety needs of those suffering from mental illness, and imprisonment does little to address offenses caused by illness. One of the primary reasons for the vast over-criminalization of mental illness was a 1980’s sponsored change to the definition of legal insanity. The 1980’s definition precludes a person whose mental illness was the direct cause of the offense from asserting the defense and seeking mandatory hospitalization even where the person was unable to comply with the law at the time of the offense as a result of mental illness. The current definition is so restrictive, for example, that courts have held that evidence that a defendant suffers from paranoid schizophrenia and

believed that the victim of his assault was a demon was insufficient to support a finding of insanity under the current rule.

The Solution: This resolution would adopt the Model Penal Code's definition of insanity which is in effect in twenty other states. Instead of asking whether the defendant knew that his actions were "wrong," the rule would ask whether the defendant was incapable of complying with the law as a result of mental illness at the time of the offense. As before, defendants found not guilty by reason of insanity would be committed to a locked state hospital until restored to sanity, while the onus would remain on the defendant to prove each of the elements of the defense.

IMPACT STATEMENT

This resolution does not affect any other law, statute, or rule.

CURRENT OR PRIOR RELATED LEGISLATION

None known.

AUTHOR AND/OR PERMANENT CONTACT: Nick Stewart-Oaten, 213-974-3000, 320 W. Temple Street, 5th Floor, Los Angeles, CA 90012

RESPONSIBLE FLOOR DELEGATE: Nick Stewart-Oaten

RESOLUTION 04-07-2019

DIGEST

Criminal Jury Selection: Limits on Peremptory Challenges

Adds Code of Civil Procedure section 231.6 to preclude discriminatory use of peremptory challenges in criminal jury trials.

RESOLUTIONS COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

APPROVE IN PRINCIPLE

History:

No similar resolutions found.

Reasons:

This resolution adds Code of Civil Procedure section 231.6 to preclude discriminatory use of peremptory challenges in criminal jury trials. This resolution should be approved in principle because it would help address implicit bias in jury selection, which is part of a larger effort embraced by the California Legislature and Governor to address the disparate impacts of the criminal justice system on people of color.

According to United States Census estimates as of July 1, 2018, California's population of 39.5 million people included 39.1 percent Hispanic/Latino people and 6.5 percent African American/Black people. At the same time, according to the Public Policy Institute of California, Hispanic/Latino people made up 41 percent of the people taken into custody; African American/Black people represented 16 percent. These irrational ratios raise important questions of over-policing in communities of color that have yet to be addressed. The mere fact of sending more people of color through the criminal justice pipeline means that more people of color will be incarcerated, largely based on the findings of juries. Tools are therefore required to reduce as much as possible the biases of juries. One solution is that proposed here – limits on peremptory challenges.

Consistent with current law, this resolution would allow counsel to exercise peremptory challenges, but would, as proposed, require that the reasons for the peremptory challenge be articulated on the record. This resolution would also provide that the opposing party would be entitled to raise an objection, and the court would then evaluate the reasons given for the challenge and decide, based on whether “an objective observer could view race or ethnicity... as a factor in the use of the peremptory challenge.” If the court determines that an objective observer could view race or ethnicity or any other factor found in Code of Civil Procedure section 231.5 as a factor in the use of the peremptory challenge, then the peremptory challenge would be denied.

Significantly, the resolution defines “objective observer” as an individual who is “aware that implicit, institutional, and unconscious biases, in addition to purposeful discrimination, have resulted in the unfair exclusion of potential jurors in California.”

According to the proponents, the resolution is based on General Rule 37, signed into law in Washington State in April, 2018, except that Washington’s rule applies to any jury trial (not just criminal trials). Given the growing plurality of ethnic and racial populations throughout California, providing additional tools to address implicit biases will enhance the fairness of and confidence in California’s criminal justice system.

RESOLVED that the Conference of California Bar Associations recommends that legislation be sponsored to add Code of Civil Procedure section 231.6 to read as follows:

1 §231.6

2 (a) This statute applies in all criminal jury trials.

3 (b) A party may object to the use of a peremptory challenge to raise the issue of improper
4 based upon the characteristics of a juror as found in Code of Civil Procedure section 231.5. The
5 court may also raise this objection on its own. The objection may be made by citing this statute.
6 Any further discussion shall be conducted outside the presence of the jury. The objection must be
7 made before the potential juror is excused, unless new information is discovered.

8 (c) Upon objection to the exercise of a peremptory challenge pursuant to this statute, the
9 party exercising the peremptory challenge shall articulate the reasons the peremptory challenge
10 has been exercised. The party making the objection does not need to make a prima facie
11 showing that the challenge was made for an improper motive.

12 (d) The court shall then evaluate the reasons given to justify the peremptory challenge in
13 light of the totality of circumstances. If the court determines that an objective observer could
14 view race or ethnicity or any other factor found in Code of Civil Procedure section 231.5 as a
15 factor in the use of the peremptory challenge, then the peremptory challenge shall be denied. The
16 court need not find purposeful discrimination to deny the peremptory challenge. The court
17 should explain its ruling on the record.

18 (e) For purposes of this statute, an “objective observer” is aware that implicit,
19 institutional, and unconscious biases, in addition to purposeful discrimination, have resulted in
20 the unfair exclusion of potential jurors in California.

21 (f) In making its determination, the circumstances the court should consider include,
22 but are not limited to, the following:

23 (i) the number and types of questions posed to the prospective juror, which may include
24 consideration of whether the party exercising the peremptory challenge failed to question the
25 prospective juror about the alleged concern or the types of questions asked about it;

26 (ii) whether the party exercising the peremptory challenge asked significantly more
27 questions or different questions of the potential juror against whom the peremptory challenge
28 was used in contrast to other jurors;

29 (iii) whether other prospective jurors provided similar answers but were not the subject of
30 a peremptory challenge by that party;

31 (iv) whether a reason might be disproportionately associated with a race or ethnicity; and

32 (v) whether the party has used peremptory challenges disproportionately against a given
33 race or ethnicity, in the present case or in past cases.

34 (g) The court shall subject the following reasons for peremptory challenges to heightened
35 scrutiny: allegations that the prospective juror was sleeping, inattentive, or staring or failing to
36 make eye contact; exhibited a problematic attitude, body language, or demeanor; or provided

37 unintelligent or confused answers. If any party intends to offer one of these reasons or a similar
38 reason as the justification for a peremptory challenge, that party must provide reasonable notice
39 to the court and the other parties so the behavior can be verified and addressed in a timely
40 manner. A lack of corroboration by the judge or opposing counsel verifying the behavior shall
41 invalidate the given reason for the peremptory challenge.

(Proposed new language underlined; language to be deleted stricken)

PROPOSERS: Mark Harvis, Marc Sallus, Nick Stewart-Oaten, Albert Menaster, Robin Bernstein-Lev, Casey Lilienfeld, Robert Lu, Thomas Moore, Natasha Brown, Albert Camacho.

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The Problem: Racial and other types of discrimination, whether deliberate or as a result of implicit bias, is rampant in criminal cases. Parties use peremptory challenges to remove persons, particularly persons of color, and give very transparent excuses to justify juror's excusal. Unfortunately trial courts and reviewing courts are loathe to find a juror was removed for a discriminatory reason, giving credence to even the flimsiest excuses. The United States Supreme Court has ruled that removing a juror for a biased reason is unconstitutional.

The Solution: This resolution is based almost completely upon Washington State General Rule 37. That rule is, quite frankly, a brilliant and reasonable solution to the problem of biased use of peremptory challenges. It will be easy to implement and will go a long way toward making criminal jury trials fair.

IMPACT STATEMENT

This resolution does not impact any other law, statute, or rule.

CURRENT OR PRIOR RELATED LEGISLATION

None Known.

AUTHOR AND/OR PERMANENT CONTACT: Mark Harvis, Los Angeles County Public Defender, 320 W. Temple Suite 590, Los Angeles, CA 90012 213 974-3066

RESPONSIBLE FLOOR DELEGATE: Mark Harvis, Los Angeles County Public Defender, 320 W. Temple Suite 590, Los Angeles, CA 90012 213 974-3066

RESOLUTION 04-08-2019

DIGEST

Mandatory Disclosure: Mandatory Testing and Disclosure of STDs

Amends Penal Code section 1524.1 to extend mandatory HIV test disclosure to include all STDs, allow requests by a victim's parent or guardian and reduce the punishment for false reports.

RESOLUTIONS COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

APPROVE IN PRINCIPLE

History:

No similar resolutions found.

Reasons:

This resolution amends Penal Code section 1524.1 to extend mandatory HIV test disclosure to include all STDs, allow requests by a victim's parent or guardian and reduce the punishment for false reports. This resolution should be approved in principle because it would allow crime victims to obtain information relevant to their risk of contracting sexually-transmitted diseases from defendants.

Under current law, victims of crimes that involve transmission of bodily fluids are currently unable to compel testing of the defendant for sexually-transmitted diseases ("STDs") other than HIV. (Pen. Code, § 1524.1.) Moreover, parents or guardians of minor victims cannot make the request for such testing.

This resolution would address these problems by adding parents and guardians of minor victims to the list of individuals who may request testing, and expanding testing to include all STDs, including chlamydia, gonorrhea, hepatitis, herpes, human papillomavirus, trichomoniasis, and syphilis.

If the resolution is adopted, the references to testing of the accused's "blood or oral mucosal transudate saliva" in lines 16-17 and 39-40 would need to be amended to include urine and rectal, urethral, or cervical discharge, as these tests—rather than blood or saliva tests—are used to diagnose chlamydia, gonorrhea, and trichomoniasis. The resolution may also need to be amended to retain the current penalty for making a false report in order to obtain test results. By eliminating the reference to Health and Safety Code, section 120980, subdivision (c) in lines 95-96 and 98, the resolution inadvertently cuts the penalty for false reporting from one year and \$25,000 to six months and \$1,000, by providing for an unspecified misdemeanor. (See Pen. Code, § 19.) Changes similar to those in the resolution would need to be made to Health and Safety Code section 199.97, et seq., and Penal Code sections 1202.1 and 1202.6.

TEXT OF RESOLUTION

RESOLVED that the Conference of California Bar Associations recommends that legislation be sponsored to amend Penal Code section 1524.1, to read as follows:

1 § 1524.1

2 (a) The primary purpose of the testing and disclosure provided in this section is to benefit
3 the victim of a crime by informing the victim whether the defendant is infected with ~~the HIV~~
4 virus a sexually transmitted disease, including but not limited to chlamydia, gonorrhea, hepatitis,
5 herpes, human immunodeficiency virus, human papillomavirus, trichomoniasis, and syphilis. It
6 is also the intent of the Legislature in enacting this section to protect the health of both victims of
7 crime and those accused of committing a crime. Nothing in this section shall be construed to
8 authorize mandatory testing or disclosure of test results for the purpose of a charging decision by
9 a prosecutor, nor, except as specified in subdivisions (g) and (i), shall this section be construed to
10 authorize breach of the confidentiality provisions contained in Chapter 7 (commencing with
11 Section 120975) of Part 4 of Division 105 of the Health and Safety Code.

12 (b) (1) Notwithstanding the provisions of Chapter 7 (commencing with Section 120975)
13 of Part 4 of Division 105 of the Health and Safety Code, when a defendant has been charged by
14 complaint, information, or indictment with a crime, or a minor is the subject of a petition filed in
15 juvenile court alleging the commission of a crime, the court, at the request of the victim, may
16 issue a search warrant for the purpose of testing the accused's blood or oral mucosal transudate
17 saliva ~~with any HIV test, as defined in Section 120775 of the Health and Safety Code~~ for a
18 sexually transmitted disease only under the following circumstances: when the court finds, upon
19 the conclusion of the hearing described in paragraph (3), or in those cases in which a preliminary
20 hearing is not required to be held, that there is probable cause to believe that the accused
21 committed the offense, and that there is probable cause to believe that blood, semen, or any other
22 bodily fluid identified by the State Department of Health Services in appropriate regulations as
23 capable of transmitting ~~the human immunodeficiency virus~~ a sexually transmitted disease has
24 been transferred from the accused to the victim.

25 (2) Notwithstanding Chapter 7 (commencing with Section 120975) of Part 4 of Division
26 105 of the Health and Safety Code, when a defendant has been charged by complaint,
27 information, or indictment with a crime under Section 220, 261, 261.5, 262, 264.1, 266c, 269,
28 286, 287, 288, 288.5, 288.7, 289, ~~or 289.5, or 289.6~~, or former Section 288a, or with an attempt
29 to commit any of the offenses, and is the subject of a police report alleging the commission of a
30 separate, uncharged offense that could be charged under Section 220, 261, 261.5, 262, 264.1,
31 266c, 269, 286, 287, 288, 288.5, 288.7, 289, ~~or 289.5, or 289.6~~, or former Section 288a, or of an
32 attempt to commit any of the offenses, or a minor is the subject of a petition filed in juvenile
33 court alleging the commission of a crime under Section 220, 261, 261.5, 262, 264.1, 266c, 269,
34 286, 287, 288, 288.5, 288.7, 289, ~~or 289.5, or 289.6~~, or former Section 288a, or of an attempt to
35 commit any of the offenses, and is the subject of a police report alleging the commission of a
36 separate, uncharged offense that could be charged under Section 220, 261, 261.5, 262, 264.1,
37 266c, 269, 286, 287, 288, 288.5, 288.7, 289, ~~or 289.5, or 289.6~~, or former Section 288a, or of an
38 attempt to commit any of the offenses, the court, at the request of the victim of the uncharged
39 offense, may issue a search warrant for the purpose of testing the accused's blood or oral
40 mucosal transudate saliva ~~with any HIV test, as defined in Section 120775 of the Health and~~
41 ~~Safety Code~~ for a sexually transmitted disease only under the following circumstances: when the
42 court finds that there is probable cause to believe that the accused committed the uncharged
43 offense, and that there is probable cause to believe that blood, semen, or any other bodily fluid
44 identified by the State Department of Health Services in appropriate regulations as capable of
45 transmitting ~~the human immunodeficiency virus~~ a sexually transmitted disease has been

46 transferred from the accused to the victim. As used in this paragraph, Section 289.5 refers to the
47 statute enacted by Chapter 293 of the Statutes of 1991, penetration by an unknown object.

48 (3) (A) Prior to the issuance of a search warrant pursuant to paragraph (1), the court,
49 where applicable and at the conclusion of the preliminary examination if the defendant is ordered
50 to answer pursuant to Section 872, shall conduct a hearing at which both the victim and the
51 defendant have the right to be present. During the hearing, only affidavits, counter affidavits, and
52 medical reports regarding the facts that support or rebut the issuance of a search warrant under
53 paragraph (1) shall be admissible.

54 (B) Prior to the issuance of a search warrant pursuant to paragraph (2), the court, where
55 applicable, shall conduct a hearing at which both the victim and the defendant are present.
56 During the hearing, only affidavits, counter affidavits, and medical reports regarding the facts
57 that support or rebut the issuance of a search warrant under paragraph (2) shall be admissible.

58 (4) A request for a probable cause hearing made by a victim under paragraph (2) shall be
59 made before sentencing in the superior court, or before disposition on a petition in a juvenile
60 court, of the criminal charge or charges filed against the defendant.

61 (c) (1) In all cases in which the person has been charged by complaint, information, or
62 indictment ~~with a crime~~, or is the subject of a petition filed in a juvenile court, alleging the
63 commission of a crime under Section 220, 261, 261.5, 262, 264.1, 266c, 269, 286, 287, 288,
64 288.5, 288.7, 289, or 289.5, or 289.6, or former Section 288a, or with an attempt to commit any
65 of the offenses, the prosecutor shall advise the victim of his or her right to make this request. To
66 assist the victim of the crime to determine whether he or she should make this request, the
67 prosecutor shall refer the victim to the local health officer for prerequest counseling to help that
68 person understand the extent to which the particular circumstances of the crime may or may not
69 have put the victim at risk of transmission of ~~HIV~~ a sexually transmitted disease from the
70 accused, to ensure that the victim understands both the benefits and limitations of ~~the current~~
71 ~~tests for HIV~~, to help the victim decide whether he or she wants to request that the accused be
72 tested, and to help the victim decide whether he or she wants to be tested.

73 (2) The Department of Justice, in cooperation with the California District Attorneys
74 Association, shall prepare a form to be used in providing victims with the notice required by
75 paragraph (1).

76 (d) If the victim decides to request ~~HIV~~ testing of the accused, the victim shall request the
77 issuance of a search warrant, as described in subdivision (b). Neither the failure of a prosecutor
78 to refer or advise the victim as provided in this subdivision, nor the failure or refusal by the
79 victim to seek or obtain counseling, shall be considered by the court in ruling on the victim's
80 request.

81 (e) The local health officer shall make provision for administering all ~~HIV~~ tests ordered
82 pursuant to subdivision (b).

83 (f) Any blood or oral mucosal transudate saliva tested pursuant to subdivision (b) shall be
84 subjected to appropriate confirmatory tests to ensure accuracy of the first test results, and under
85 no circumstances shall test results be transmitted to the victim or the accused unless any initially
86 reactive test result has been confirmed by appropriate confirmatory tests for positive reactors.

87 (g) The local health officer shall have the responsibility for disclosing test results to the
88 victim who requested the test and to the accused who was tested. However, no positive test
89 results shall be disclosed to the victim or to the accused without also providing or offering
90 professional counseling appropriate to the circumstances.

91 (h) The local health officer and victim shall comply with all laws and policies relating to
92 medical confidentiality subject to the disclosure authorized by subdivisions (g) and (i). Any
93 individual who files a false report of sexual assault in order to obtain test result information
94 pursuant to this section shall, in addition to any other liability under law, be guilty of a
95 misdemeanor ~~punishable as provided in subdivision (e) of Section 120980 of the Health and~~
96 ~~Safety Code~~. Any individual as described in the preceding sentence who discloses test result
97 information obtained pursuant to this section shall also be guilty of an additional
98 misdemeanor ~~punishable as provided for in subdivision (e) of Section 120980 of the Health and~~
99 ~~Safety Code~~ for each separate disclosure of that information.

100 (i) Any victim, parent or guardian of a minor victim, or authorized legal representative
101 who receives information from the health officer pursuant to subdivision (g) may disclose the
102 test results as the victim or recipient deems necessary to protect ~~his or her~~ the victim's health and
103 safety or the health and safety of his or her family or sexual partner.

104 (j) Any person transmitting test results or disclosing information pursuant to this section
105 shall be immune from civil liability for any actions taken in compliance with this section.

106 (k) The results of any blood or oral mucosal transudate saliva tested pursuant to
107 subdivision (b) shall not be used in any criminal proceeding as evidence of either guilt or
108 innocence.

109 (l) Any rights of the victim under this section may also be exercised by a parent or
110 guardian of the victim, if the victim is a minor, or by an authorized legal representative.

(Proposed new language underlined; language to be deleted stricken)

PROPONENT: Los Angeles County Bar Association

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The Problem: Existing law permits a victim of sexual assault who was exposed to the defendant's bodily fluids to obtain a search warrant directing the local health officer to test the defendant for HIV and disclose the results to both the defendant and the victim. The purpose of this law is to protect the health of both the defendant and the victim, who may not share the defendant's results except to protect the health or safety of a family member or sexual partner. Under circumstances that warrant a court granting a victim's request for a defendant to be tested for HIV, there is no reason to exclude testing for other sexually transmitted diseases, which can lead to sterility, increased cancer risk, or death, if left untreated.

The Solution: This resolution would allow a victim of sexual assault to request a search warrant that allows testing for all sexually transmitted diseases, including but not limited to HIV. In addition, it clarifies that this warrant can be requested by a parent or guardian of a minor victim or an authorized legal representative.

IMPACT STATEMENT

This resolution does not affect any other law, statute, or rule.

CURRENT OR PRIOR RELATED LEGISLATION

None known

AUTHOR AND/OR PERMANENT CONTACT: Michael Fern, Los Angeles County District Attorney's Office, 211 W. Temple St., Ste. 1000, Los Angeles, CA 90012, (213) 257-2438, sclawyer@gmail.com

RESPONSIBLE FLOOR DELEGATE: Michael Fern

RESOLUTION 04-09-2019

DIGEST

Infraction: Petty Theft

Amends Penal Code section 490.1 to raise the limit for filing a petty theft as an infraction from \$50 to \$100.

RESOLUTIONS COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

APPROVE IN PRINCIPLE

History:

No similar resolutions found.

Reasons:

This resolution amends Penal Code section 490.1 to raise the limit for filing a petty theft as an infraction from \$50 to \$100. This resolution should be approved in principle because it is a reasonable update given the rise in inflation.

Existing law permits a theft of \$50 or less to be filed as an infraction or misdemeanor. (Pen. Code, § 490.1.) As an infraction, the offense is punishable as a fine not exceeding \$250. (Pen. Code, §§ 19.8, 490.1.) As a misdemeanor, the offense is punishable by a fine not exceeding \$1,000, or imprisonment in the county jail for not more than six months, or both. (Pen. Code, § 19.) A defendant has no right to a jury trial on an infraction alone. (Pen. Code, § 1042.5.)

Section 490.1 was enacted in 1991. Since 1991, inflation has increased 87 percent. It appears reasonable to increase the limit for charging a petty theft as an infraction from \$50 to \$100.

TEXT OF RESOLUTION

RESOLVED that the Conference of California Bar Associations recommends that legislation be sponsored to amend Penal Code section 490.1, to read as follows:

- 1 §490.1
- 2 (a) Petty theft, where the value of the money, labor, real or personal property taken is of a
- 3 value which does not exceed fifty one hundred dollars (~~\$50~~100), may be charged as a
- 4 misdemeanor or an infraction, at the discretion of the prosecutor, provided that the person
- 5 charged with the offense has no other theft or theft-related conviction.
- 6 (b) Any offense charged as an infraction under this section shall be subject to the
- 7 provisions of subdivision (d) of Section 17 and Sections 19.6 and 19.7.
- 8 A violation which is an infraction under this section is punishable by a fine not exceeding
- 9 two hundred fifty dollars (\$250).

(Proposed new language underlined; language to be deleted stricken)

PROPONENT: Contra Costa County Bar Association

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The Problem: Recently, the threshold for a felony grand theft was \$400 but was recently raised to \$950. This helps account for the changes in cost of living and the value of money. However, the amount limit for which an infraction can be charged has not risen. When the value of the theft is less than \$100, this gives offenders a way to be held accountable without facing a more serious misdemeanor charge. Also, it is a way for prosecutors to deal with relatively minor cases without needing to file misdemeanor charge and potentially going to multi-day jury trial over a minor theft.

The Solution: The change would give prosecutors and police the option of charging an infraction instead of a misdemeanor on a larger percentage of cases. It does not take power away from a prosecutor because they still have the option of charging a misdemeanor if they so choose. Also, this provision is unlikely to be abused by criminal defendants because it only applies if the defendant does not have a prior theft conviction.

IMPACT STATEMENT

This resolution does not affect any other law, statute, or rule.

CURRENT OR PRIOR RELATED LEGISLATION

None known.

AUTHOR AND/OR PERMANENT CONTACT: Dorian A. Peters, Attorney at Law, 535 Main St., Martinez, CA 94553; (510) 684-7696; dorian@petersesq.com.

RESPONSIBLE FLOOR DELEGATE: Dorian A. Peters